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WHO WE ARE

In fields as varied as drug discovery, alternative energy
and engmeenng, Biofusion owns the nghts to an amazing
depth and quality of research from two of the UK's leading
universities, enabling us to invest in some of the world’s
most advanced and exciting science and turn world
class research into business




WHAT WE DO

We create, support and grow a range of companies in an exciting
variety of sectors. From lifestyle to energy, we seek to make
the very best of emerging IP from two of the UK's leading research

Intensive universities,

OUR PORTFOLIO COMPANIES

Abcellute s patent prolected cell stabilising platiorm
technaology enables the non-frozen presarvation
and transportation of live organ-derved cells without
the loss of viabilty or function for up to seven days

Apeno 5 pratotype medical probe can detect pre-cancercus
cefls in a woman s cervix without the need for the current
painful and lengthy internal colcoscopy examination

12L Research provides worldwide agrochermical manutacturers
with specialist preduct testing development services and
envisonmental mononng semces The company has offices
n Cardiff and Newcastle

Morvus 15 engaged in the discovery developrment and
commerciaksation of novel diugs and technologies pnmanty
n the {ield of encalogy |t has a bread partfoho of technolegy
with produots based upon its core expertise in prodiug-enzyme
interachons and knowledge of the mecharvsm of apeptosis

Absynth Biologics 1s developing vaccines and antibodies
1o treat infections caused by the bactenum Staphylococcus
aureus including its more citficult fo-treat drug-resistant
form MRSA Its uruque patented technology 1s inibially being
used 1o develop an M3RA vaccine and antibocies o treat
significant MRSA related infections as well as other appiications.

Art of Xen holds & number of patents for the cost efficient
delivery of the anaesthetic gas Xenon Xenon s showing
promise in research as a neuroprotectant that can protect
against and reduce brain darmage with an almost complete
lack of side effects.

Litestyle Choices launched is hrst product a tiple hormone
ovananreserve test called Plan Ahead i 2006 The test
affers the most accurate hormone based ovarian reserve
test available to the pubhc enabling women to make mora
mformed decisions abeut when they try for a baby

The company 1s teveloping its second product amed

at the IVF market for launch in 2008

Muscagen 18 a computation based rationat drug discovery
company that design molecules which interact wath receniorns
on the surtace of human cells in specific ways 113 approach
1s potentially cost-eftective and efficient reduces arnmal
testing and avoids likely side effects

Adpvants help stmulate the immune system s response to a
vaccine so the pelter the adjuvant the lower the vacoination
dose canbe making the vaccine cheaper andg sater
Adjuvantix s aduvant 1s capable of a profound enhancement
{1 000 fold) of the anui body response

Asterion s ProFuse technology platform i1s being

used {o develop third generation therapeutic protein

drugs designed t¢ have greater potency and selectvty
to be longer fasting and have a belter side effect profile
than current protein based therapies

Magnomatics specialises in the develcpment of novel
high-torque magnetic geaiboxes motars and generators
for use within wing iurbing power generation transportation
and domestic energy products Its patented pseudo direct
dnve motor/generator system has addinonal applications
in the aerospace and hybnd vehicle market

Phase Focus owns the nghts to patents for a process
that can generate high definihon images of an object
without the need 1or the hugh quality lenses that account
for a sigrificant element of the cost of high-performance
microscopes This breakthrough technology has the
potential to produce better images at a lower cost than
currently avaiable microscopes



MEDICINE

ELECTRICAL

Axorcha 1s a regenerative therapeutics company ubiising its
platiorm human embryonic stem cell technology to prevent
transplart rejection through the use of its unigue endovascular
cell technology and cure degenerativa blindness through
its noved retinal cell tachnology for the treatment of AMD

Celllran provides active wound care by delivenng Inang

ceafls for the reatment and active healing of burns and chronic
wounds in san Cedtran has a nurnber of products in is portfoho
Inctucing MySkin (in market) and Lypoderm (ready for
Phase Ill tnals)

Mantelum is developing research focused on the G-proten

coupled receptor (GPCR} supertamily which are imvelved in
a wade range of disorders mcluding allergies carchovascular
disease pan depression cancer obesily diabetes and

a vanety of central nervous system disorders

G Chip develeps advanced life science and therapeutic
products using its propnetary MicroPlant platiorm for the
production of precision Ioaded polymer microspheres
The comparny has three core precision microsphere products
-ReaX Biologix and lonX which have st been launched
it the UK market

ENERGY

ENGINEERING

Bicfusion Licensing 15 a specialist company that ddentifies
cevelops and hcenses world class university IP 1o commaercial
companies and research organisations Ther websitg1s a
licensing portal for identiying leensirkg opporturnities within
the Biofusion technelogy pipeline

Crurnal owns the patent nghts ta Chronocort * a modiied
release tormulation of hydrocortisone to treat adrenal
nsufficiency The product 1s designed to release hormone
at concentrations that mimic the natural level of hormone
n the bady <ontrolling disease symploms and raducting
unwanted side effects

Medaphor designs and develops medical trarung solutions
on mutl media and computer based simulations systems
The company has two online multimedia gynaecologicat
ultrasound training modules and a prototype haplic
ultrasound simulator

Simeyp s informatics plationm enables pharmaceutical
companies to simulate drug behawvow 10 humans pror
10 running clinical tnals by using wival popudation data
rather than data from one average indnidual Afowing
patients at extrema nsk from adverse reachion to be
wentfied at an sarty stage

ENVIRONMENT

LIFESTYLE

Biohydragen 1s devdoping a matabolicalty engneered microdxal
procuction method thal 1s capable of producing hydregen
trom sugar solution media and waler through fermentation
initial rasults indic ate this unique method ot production has
the potential to be &t the torefront of new low carbon fuel
technotogy developrnents

Genophirenix has identified several proteins and thexr genes
that nteract with a key component mplicated in schizophrena
Its witial focus 1s to develop a diagnostic for schuzoptveria

and provide icensing oppertunities that will be attractive to
the glopal pharrmacautical Indusiry

Medella 15 designing monoclonal antibodies that inhibit the
action of Adrencmedullin {ADM} a molecule found in 80%
of cancer cells It 1s believed ihat ADM 1s a key molecule in
enabling cancer cells to survive and Medella 1s developing
drugs that modulate ADM signatling in cancer cells anc
stop the tumour growing




HIGHLIGHTS

(31 July 2006 £37m) by signing an exclusive ten year pipeline agreement with
Cardiff Unwversity {Cardiffy Cardiff 1s one of the UK's leading research intensive
universities, ranked seventh in the most recent RAE (Research Assessment

Expanded the business to include world class research in energy, environment,
engineering and IT

Raised £7 8m to invest in Cardiff Intellectual Property (iP), increasing total cash
funds to £10 6m {31 July 2006 £5 8m)

Increased the number of companies in our portfolio to 24 (31 July 2006 12)

Created four new companies (31 July 2006 2) Biohydrogen, Absynth Biologics.
Medella Therapeutics, Biofusion Licensing

Exited our 9% shareholding in Plasso Technologles

Invested or committed to invest up to £3 3m In 14 portfolio companies to support
their continued development

POST REVIEW END HIGHLIGHTS

In September 2007 announced that we had sighed a co-investment
Mermorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Finance Wales which provides prionty
access to Finance Wales' substantial investment funds

In October 2007 announced that we had sold our 50% stakes in each of Cardiff
Protides and Cardiff Biologicals to Morvus Technology Ltd (Morvus) in return for
a 20% shareholding in Morvus

In October 2007 announced that we signed an exclusive licence agreement
with an undisclosed leading US reproductive testing laboratory to sell the
Plan Ahead test in the USA and Canada
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

We own the rnights to an
amazing depth and quality
of research and we aim to
turn that into real value for
our shareholders

CASE STUDY BIOHYDROGEN

Professor Phillp Wnght and his team at Biohydrogen have metabolically engineered
a strain of £ cof to Include a copy of a cyanobacterial derived bi-directional
hydrogenase enzyme that leads to the generation of additional hydrogen

This novel and patented platform technology has demonstrated exceptional
hydrogen production rates Although at an early stage, the results suggest
that the hydrogen I1s being produced not just from the dark fermentation of the
glucose to hydrogen but that the process i1s also causing a catalytic reaction
that 1s spliting the water to produce extra hydrogen

The technology platform required to develop this bio-hydrogen production
method 1s simular to the technology used by many biotech compantes that
produce enzymes for drug synthesis (antibiotics, ant cancer, etc }, consumer
goods (detergents, brewed beverages, food products, plastics, etc ), and
enhanced animal feed and alternative energy sources such as bic-ethano!
As a result the commercialisation of this enzyme-based product should be
able to follow a clear and well-detined path with well understood procedures

There is significant interest in all forms of renewable ‘clean’ energy technologies
to combat global warming, in response to the depletion of and increasing price
of fossil fuels and to address energy secunty problems Biohydrogen belteves
its unique method of production has the potential to be at the forefront of

new low carbon fuel technology develcpments and aims tc develop a unique
microbiological method of producing hydrogen far the industnal hydrogen
market and any future hydrogen energy related market

DOUG LIVERSIDGE CBE
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I am delighted to announce Biofusion s results
for the year ended 31 July 2007 which has been
a year of signficant progress and expansion

KEY EVENTS

& Trebled the research pipeline for which we own
exclusive nghts, to £114m {31 July 2006 £37m)
by signing an exclusive ten year pipeline
agieemeni with Cardiff Ureversity (Cardiff)
Cardiff 13 one of the UK’s leading research
intensive vniversities ranked seventh n the
maost secent RAE {Research Assessment
Exercise) based rankings,

e Expanded the business 1o include world class
resgarch 1n energy environment engingenng
and {T

& Raised £7 8m to invest m Cardiff 1P
Increasing total cash funds to €10 6m
{371 July 2006 £5 9im)

e Increased the number of companes
in our pertfolio to 24 (31 July 2006 12)

o Created tour new companes (31 July 2006 two)
Biohydrogen Absynth Biologics Medella
Therapeutics, Biofusion Licensing

o Eated our 9% shareholding in Plasso
Technologies

¢ Swengthened Astencn s managemeant team
with a blue chip Chanman Chief Executive
Oificer and Nen-executive Director, and

& Invested or committed to nvest up to £3 3m
I 14 potiolio cormparues to support their
conitnued development

In thus our last year under UK GAAP before

we transfer 1o Inteinational Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) we teport turnover of £0 4in
{2006 £C 3m) and losses of £2 9m (2006 loss
of €1 9m} which were broadly in hne with budgets
Under UK GAAP no allowance 1s made {ar the
inciease in the value of cur portiolic company
investments which are currently held at cost less
imparment i value Going fowaid incieases

In the fair value of our portiolio companies will be
shown in the profit and loss account, consistent
wilh the approach taken by our competitors

Post yzar end we announced

® In September 2007 that we had signed a
co-investiment Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) with Finance Wales wtuch provides prioty
access to Finance Wales substantial
investment funds

o [n Octcber 2007 thal we had sold cur 50%
stakes i each of Caidift Protides and Caicift
Biologicals to Monass Technology Lid (Morvus)
inseturn for a 20% shareholding in Morvus and

o In October 2007, we signed an exclusve
licence agreement with an undisclosed leading
US reproductive tesung laboratory to sell the
Plan Ahead test in the USA and Canada

biotusian ple annual repon and accounts 2007

CARDIFF UNIVERSITY

Our parineiship with Caidiff 1s a sigruficant
milestone that has enabled us to build on

our successiul partnership with the University
of Sheffield and secure access to a second
high quality Intellactual Property {IP) pipekne
as well as enabling us to expand our portfoho
into non-life science sectors such as engmnesnng
energy emironment and cormputing

Cardifi1s the seventh jankeci research
intensve uriversity in the UK and recently
announced ils second Nobel Prize winner
Professor Sir Martin Evans who won the
Nobel Prize for Medicine e October 2007

In conunciion with the Cardifi agreement and

the £7 8m placing Biolusion cicated a dedicated
mvestment fund of £8 2m 1 a new wholly owned
subsidiary Fusion Carchiff rmited exclusively for
investing i Cardifl portiohe companies

We now have excluswve IP pipeline agreements
with two of the UK s top 1en 1eseaich intensive
universities and are confident that our model
will continue to be attractive 1o hugh guahiy
research intensive univesities both in she

UK and overseas

INVESTMENTS DURING THE PERIOD
Cuning the year we vested ar approved
facihties for nvestments, of £3 3m wiich has
been used to fund the creation of four naw
companies and the contnwed development
of 12 portfolio companies

We continue to believe that our pottiolio has

a halanced mix of short medium and long term
investments and that we remain committed
to and tocused on, our core stiategy which
15 10 achieve high value exits from our poitfoho
of companes at the appiopiiate ime to 1edhse
ther value to our shareholders

FINANCE WALES MQU

Post year end on 21 September 2007 we
signed a MoU with Finance Wales, the providen

of commercial funding 10 Wales-based businesses
detailing a co-investment strategy for investing
in opportunibes ansing fiom Biofusion s exclusve
IP pipeline agreement with Cardifi University
Finance Wales already manages funds of imore
than £160m and has uwested £75m in Wales

EXITS

Duiing the year as pari of the sale of Plasso
Technalogy (UK) Lirmited (Plasso) to Becton
Dickinson and Company Biotusion disposed
ol its 9% shareholding in Plasso Financial terms
of the deal were not disclosed

Post year end on 10 October 2007 we announc
that we had sold out equity shareholdings
in Carchif Protides and Carditt Biologicals
to Morvus a privately owned pharmaceutical
company specialismg in the discovery and
development of novel oncology therapies

Morvus has raised over £3 4m in equity

finance to date and its most 1ecent funding,
largely concluded in July 2007, valued Morvus at
approximalely £12m hased on a price of 30p per
share As aresult of the sale Biofusion now owns
13 698 630 shares in Morvus, giving it a 20%
shaiehoiamg n the enlaiged Mowuggzoup

Morvus' expertise in oncdogy based pharmaceutical
development coivinced us that the new combined
company could be a world leader in the provision
of specialist oncology drugs anc prowided the
best opportunty for bninging Cardiif Protiddes and
Cardift Bologicals' lead compounds to market

DIRECTORATE CHANGE

In January 2007 Mr Mike Bavies whos
Ditector of Physical and Financal Resources

tor Cardiff University became a Nan-executive
Director of the Board We welcome him onto

the Board of Biofusion

ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

From 1 Augusi 2007 Biotusion wilk acopt
International Financial Repomng Standards
{IFRS) This will have a significant impact

an the 1eporting of the company's financial
performance as changes inthe canying valug
of owr portfolic company investmenis will ke
recognised (n the prohit and loss account

Al present Biofusion cames all these mvestments
at cost The Directors bebeve this does not reflect
the tiue value of the portfolio

The adoption: of IFRS will bring the comnpany s
reporing in hine with s major competitars

QUTLOOK

tn fields as vaned as drug discovery aiteinative
energy and engineenng, we now own the nghts
to a fruly significant depth and qually of research
from two of the UK s leading univessities This has
enabled us 1o create a growing portiolio of
companies based on some of the woarld’s most
advanced and exciting science Qur focus
continues to be 1o expand this portfolo maxnuse
the value of these compamas and then exil these
companies at the apprepnate time, either through
trade sale or IPQ

We lock forward with consiclerable opirmism
to the next nancial year

UG LIVERSIDGE CBE
CHAIRMAN
15 Qctober 2007
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

This has been an excellent

year for Biofusion in which DAVID BATNES
we have continued to expand
both our university base and
our portfolio of companies
PORTFOLIO COMPANY INVESTMENTS
Yaar to Post
31 July 2007 vear enc
Committed not Cutstandng
Invested yeol brvested wesed  commitments
£ £ c 1
Abcellute 56,000 200,000 200,000 —_
Absynih Biologics 140,000 185,000 —— 185000
Apeno Diagnostics 79,000 - — —
Asteron - 265,000 — 265 000
Axorca 378,000 115,000 75000 4Q G000
Biohydrogen 54,000 146,000 25000 121,000
Cardiff Biologicals —_ — 200 000 _
Caicifi Prolides - —_ 200000 —
Cellran 161,008 150,000 75 000 75 000
Diumnal 126,000 99,000 — 99 000
Genopiuenix 198,000 — -~ —
Lifestyle Choices 68,000 —_ — -
Mecaphor 10,000 — — ——
Medella Therapeutics 64,000 256,000 —_ 256 000
Phase Focus 314,000 86,000 —_ 86 000
Q-Chip 47,000 78,000 — 78 000
Total 1,695,000 1,580,000 775000 1205000
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This has been an excellent year for Biofusion
n which we have continued to expand both our
university base and our portfolio of companies

THE CARDIFF PIPELINE

The Cardiif agreement gives Biofusion exclusive
nghts, over ten years 1o all Cardiff's nghts i IP
genevated by Cardiff research and to commercialise
thes IP through the formation of portfolio companies
The Directors eskmate that the research spend
available to Cardiff over the Ife of the Cardft
agreement will be well In excess of £1 billion
Biotusron will initially hold 100% of the equity

n each new Cardiff portfolio company and will
then allocate an appropnate proportion to the
academics involved in these companies

TRANSFERRED PORTFOLIO COMPANIES
As part of the agreement Carciff s shareholding
In seven exiskng companies (see table below)
werg transferred to Biclusion in return for toan
notes of £1 4m (£1 65m including the post year
end transfer of Cardiff Biclogicals)

Potental hutly

diuted Biotuson

sharehoiding

Company name: )

Abcellute 2408
Art of Xen 3158
Cardiff Protides 2250
Insect Investigations 1000
Medaphor 3203
Muscagen 1297
Q Chip 2035

Cardiif Biclogicals* 2500

* Caraf Biologicals shareholcling was transferred
to Biofusion on 2 Cctober 2007

QUR PORTFOLIO COMPANIES
We now have 24 companies in our porttoho

Portfolio companies as at 31 July 2006 12
New companies started/acquired in the year 13

Comparues exited dunng the year 1
Portiollo comparies as at 31 July 2007 24
New companies added post year end 1
Companies exted post year end 2

Successes in our perifolo dunng the penod include

ASTERION
Bicfusion shareholding

Asterion 1s developing next-generation therapeutic
proteins wath supenor pharmacological profiles
that will improve the current treatment options
for pattents with chronic diseases It owns a
novel, patented therapeutic platform technology,
ProFuse™ which has tremendous ulility and
versatlily and can be apphed 10 a huge number
of cytokine families and targets to generate
novel, IP-protected next-generation
biopharmaceutical products

Astenon's most advanced product 1s a long-acting
growth hormone (GH) agonist product for the
treatment of growth disorders, which 1s being
developed in a strategic alllance with [psen

The company has internal prograrmmes for other
cytokine targets which include erythropoietin
(AFT™-EPQ} G-CSF (AFT™ —GCSF) interferons
(AFT™ ~Inteferon a and AFT™ - [nteferon B) and
leptin (AFT™ — Leptin)

Post year end Astenon’s technology exemplified
with GH, was published in the world renowned
scientific journal ‘Nature Medicine” The current
therapeunc procedure for GH replacement in
adults and childien requires once daily injections
of GH which are inconvenient expensive and can
be painful The Natuie paper reports that tests
with the Astenion version of GH showed that a
single injection promoted growth for ten days
which s far supenior when compared with
conventional GH The ability to apply this
technology to create a wide varety of therapeutic
protens lead the Directors to believe that this
technology can lead to a next generation of
recombinant protein therapeutics

Dunng the year we strengthened Astenon s
management team with the appoiniment of
Dr Kevin Bryelt as Charrman Dr Raymond
Barlow as CEQ and Dr David Lawrance as
a Non-executive Director

Durning ihe year we commitied to invest
a further £265,000 1in Astenon

SIMCYP
Biofusion shareholding

25%

Sunecyp s informaties platform and consultancy
serices enable pharmaceutical companies

to simutate drug behaviour in humans pror

to running chinical tnals The software uses virtual
population data rather than data from just one
average' indvidual This allows patients at
extreme iisk from adverse reaction (o be
identified at an earty stage In addition, potental
drug-dsug nteractions can also be predicied
thus enabhng Pharmaceutical companies to
tailor therr testing programmes on humans in
an informed way Sirmeyp continues to expand
its operatons with turnover up 34% year on year
at £1 99m {2006 £1 48m) and profits up 39%
to £0 53m (2006 €0 38m)

DIURNAL
Biolusion shareholding

60%

Dunng the year Diumnal which owns the

patent nghts 1o Chronocort™  a medified
release formulation of hydrocortisone to

treat adrenal insufficiency announced that
Phoqus Pharmaceuticals Ltd, the speciality
pharmaceutical company with whon it is
developing Chronocort™  had rarsed £6 5m
gross of expenses, to progress Chronocort™ into
Phase Il chmicat tnals The product 1s designed
to release hormone at concentrations that mimic
the natural level of hormane in the body Thisis
considered very important in controlling disease
symploms and reducing unwanted side effects
Chronocort™, which has European Orphan
Medicinal Product designation, 1s expected fo
be ready for masket within two years generating
significant royalty revenues for Drurmal n a
market worth in excess of £100m

During the year we invested £126,000 and
commutled to a further mvestment of £99 000 lo
expand s product pipeline and fund development
work on three additional patented products

Cardiff University, established in 1883, has an international reputation for the quality of its teaching and research
In August 2004 Cardiff merged with the renowned University of Wales College of Medicine, one of the UK's leading
medical schools, and now has more than 5,000 staff and 22,000 students

A member of the exclusive Russell Group of research-led universities, Cardiff 1s

® ranked 7th in the latest RAE (2001} based on average weighted RAE grade,

@ ranked joint 8th in the latest RAE (2001) for the number of schools rated “5” and “5*" (being the highest ratings)
in areas which the Directors consider to be the most likely to generate IP with commercialisation potential, and

¢ ranked 5thin the Times Higher Education Supplement 2006 revtew of university income generated from IP

In the year to 31 July 2006 Carchif had a research income of £77m representing a 51% increase over the last
two years and has mvested over £100m in its infrastructure over the last five years In July 2007 Cardiff announced
that it was on course for a record breaking research income year and had already secured research contract awards

in excess of £100m
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW
CONTINUED

OUR PORTFOLIO COMPANIES CONTINUED
PHASE FOCUS
Biofusson shareholding

56%

Phase Focus s developing an alternative approach
to microscopy and imaging that does not require
sophisticated lenses and has apphcations in
optical x-ray and electron microscopy, amongst
others Phase Focus owns the nghis to patents
for a process thal can ganerats high definiion
images of an object without the need for the high
quality lenses that account for a signiicant element
of the cost of high-performance microscopes
The Deectors believe thal Phase Focus'
breakthrough technology has the potential

{o create a new generation of ‘lensless’
microscopes, which will produce better mages
at a lower cost In a market which is forecast

to grow to $1 6 bilion by 2009

Dunng the year we invested £314,000 in Phase
Focus and committed to invest a further £86 000

ABSYNTH BIOLOGICS
Biofusion shareholding

60%

During the year wa created Absynth Biologics
which 1s developing vacaines and antibodies

1o treat infechions caused by the bactenum
Staphylococcus aureus (S aureus), Including

is more difficult-to-treat drug-resistant form
methicilin-reststant S awreus (MRSA) Hospital
acquired infections are an increasing public
health concern and are responsible for a nse
in the number of hospital deaths Absynth s
unique patented technology has been developed
at the University of Shefhield and inhally 1s being
used to develop an MSRA vacane and antibodies
to treat significant MRSA related intections as
well as other apphcations

Ounng the year we invesied £140 000 n
Absynth Biologics and comimitted to invest
a further £185 000

AXORDIA
Biofusion shareholding

45%

Axordia one of the UK s leading stem cell
companies announced it had received
significant support for is research programme,
in collaboration with Sheffield and Lombard
Medical Technologies, through a £0 Sm grant
from the DT and MRC for the development
through to clinical tnals of a regenerative steni —
a new generation treatment for cardiovascular
cisease Axordia also announced its participation
n the European Commission "ESTOOLS"
programme ESTOOLS 1s a world leading €12m
stemn cell research initiative that will advance the
fundamental understanding and biomedical
apphcabions of human embryonic stem cells

Axordia 1s a major partner in the London Project
to Cure Blindness, to which Axordia will be
supplying all the RPE cell ines This project has
funding of £4m and plans to complete human
tnals to cure Age Related Macular Degeneration
(AMD} wathin four years

Duning the year we mvested £378,000 in Axordia
takang our shareholding to 45%

Q-CHIP
Biofusion shareholding

10%

Q-Chip develops advanced hte science and
therapeutic products using its propretary
MicroPlant platform tor the production

of precision leaded potymer microspheres

In July 2007 Q-Chip secured £2m of equity
investment {rom groups ncluding CPF
E-Synergy Finance Wales Jon Moulton

and Biofusion This investment should enable
Q-Chip to develop and exploit three core
precision microsphere products

® ReaX - for advanced bead based molecular
reagents and cell assays

¢ BiologiX - berugn and efficient encapsulation
system for the delivery and sustained release
of biopharmaceutical drugs

¢ |onX — microsphere system for delivery
and controlled release of small
molecule therapies

Dunng the year we invested £47,000 in Q-Chip
and commutted tonvest a further £78,000

MAGNOMATICS
Bicfusion sharehalding

4% __

In Apnl 2007 we announced that we had taken
over the University of Shefheld's 55% shareholding
in one of ther non-hie scrence spin out companies
Magnomatics Lid (Magnomalics) Magnomatics
specialises in the development of novel high-torque
magnetic gearboxes molors and generators

for use within wind turbine power generation
transportation and domestc energy products

High-forque mechamicat geatboxes such as
those used in the expanding domestic and
indusinal wind power generation market can
suffer expensive permanent damage If a gusting
wind applies too great a load to their mechanical
dive systems Magnomatics patented pseude
direct drive moter/generator systems removes
the nisk of expensive damage from high winds
wiih the added benefit of being lighter, lubncation
free and more efficient than a conventional high
torque gearbox The technology has additional
appheations in the aerospace and hybrid
vehicle markets

Magnomatics trades profitably

BIOHYDROGEN
Biolusion shareholding

60%

In Apnl 2007 we announced the creation of
Eichydrogen Limited {Biohydrogen) which s
developing a metabolically engineered rmicrotyal
production method for producing hydrogen from
fermentable sugars and waler Imtial results
indicate that this umique method of production
has the potential o be at the foretront of new
low carbon fuel technology developments

There 1s sigivficant interest in all forms

of renawable 'clean energy technologies

to combat global warming 1n response to

the depletion of and increasing pnce of fossil
fuels and to address energy secunity problems
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Bichydrogen ams to develop a unique
microbiological method of producing hydrogen
for the industnal hydregen market and any future
hydrogen energy refated market

The company s offices and laboratones
are based in Sheffield s Bioincubator

Dunng the year we invested £54 000 in Biohydrogen
and commilted o invest a further £146 000

ABCELLUTE
Biofusion shareholding

34%

Abcellute s patent protected cell stabilising
platform technology enables the non-frozen
preservation and transport of ive organ-denved
cells without the lass of wiability or function

The Abcellute product 1s currently being sold

to pharmaceutical companies in the UK Europe
and Japan for pre-chinical drug testing and the

CASE STUDY ASTERION

company 1s actively expanding these sales o
Asia and the USA |a the long-term the company
plans o develop the preservation technology to
provide products for cell-based therapeutics

Duning the year we invested £56,000 in Abcellute
and then subsequent to the year end, Abcellute
raised £400 000 from Biofuston (£200 000} and
Finance Wales (€200 000} increasing Biolusion's
shareholding to 34%

PLASSO TECHNOLOGY
Biofusion shareholding

9%

Dunng the year as part of the sale of Plasso
Technology (UK} Limited (Plasso) to Becton
Dickinson and Company, Biofusion disposed
of its 8% sharehotding in Plasso Financial
terms of the deal were not disclosed

LIFESTYLE CHOICES
Biotfusion shareholding

60%

Litestyle Choices sells the Plan Ahead test which
1s a patented triple hormone ovasian reserve iest
that helps a woman to make a more informed
decision about whether 1o try for a baby soconer
rather than later

In October 2007 Lifestyle Choices announced

it had signed a icence agreement with an
undisclosed leading US reproductive diagnostics
company {the Partner), for the exclusive nights to
sell the Lifestyle Choices’ Plan Ahead test which
helps measure a woman s egg reserves, In North
Amenca and Canada Under the terms of the
agreement, the Partner will be given exclusive
nghts to market sell and distnbute Plan Ahead in
North America and Canada through its extensive
network of speciality physictans  Lifestyle Choices
will recerve an agreed fee on a shiding scale, per
test that 1s sold with a commitment by the Pariner

Astenon i1s developing a range of third-generation therapeutic proteins that will
improve the current treatment options for patients with chronic diseases Using

its novel, patented ProFuse™ therapeutic platform Asterion 1s generating and

developing long-acting biopharmaceutical products that can be administered at a
lower dose, less frequently and with fewer side effects than existing marketed drugs

Asterion is adopting a lower nsk development strategy by developing third-generation
Astenon Fusion Technology (AFT ™) therapeutic proteins that address unmet clinical
and commercial needs In large markets where the targets are validated, the clinical
development path 1$ known and the commercial opportunity 1s clear

These proprietary, best-in-class, third-generation, therapeutic products are being
developed and commercialised through a combination of internal programmes

and external collaborations

Asterion's most advanced product 1s a long-acting Growth Hormone agonist
product for the treatment of growth disorders, which i1s being developed in a
strategic alhance with Ipsen Asterion also has internal programmes for other
cytokine targets, which include erythropoietin (AFT™ - EPQO}, G-CSF (AFT™

— GCSF}, interferons (AFT™ - Inteferon a, AFT™ - Inteferon B) and leptin

(AFT™ — teptin}, products which will be used to treat diseases such as anaemia,
neutropenia, multiple sclerosis, growth disorders and autoimmune disorders
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW
CONTINUED

CASE STUDY PHASE FOCUS

to selling an agreed minimum number of tests
per year The Partner expects to comrnence sales
of the Plan Ahead test at the end of 2007

Subsequent 10 the year end we announced the
addilron of one more company to our portfolio
an investment in two companies and the sale
of two comparues to Morvus

CARDIFF BIOLOGICALS
Biofusion shareholding

50%

in September, as part of the Cardiff agreement
we took over Cardift's 25% share holding

in Cardiff Biologicals Cardiff Biological s
technology 1s based on Professor Wen Jiang s
research speciaising In anti-angliogenests
products for the treatment of cancer Therr lead
compound 1s KVE702, a novel, hybnd molecule
combining ant-angiogenic activity and endothelral

cell regulatory actty KVE702 has completed
its research phase and 1s now ready to enter

full development This protein compnses two
{functional sequences each with a dhiferent mode
of action and so has the potential for dual acthion
giving rse tc a greater anti-angiogenic activity

Subsequent to taking over the University s 25%
shareholding Brofusion invested €200 000,
ncreasing our shareholding to 50%

CARDIFF PROTIDES
Brofusion shareholding

50%

Cardiff Protide s technology s based

on Professor Chrstopher McGuigan's research
which enables the discovery of new and
improved nucleoside based drugs This
approach has been successiully utihised with a
number of major pharmaceutcal companies in
the anti-viral field and has more recenilty been
applied in the anti-cancer field Caidifl Protide's

Based on the work of Professaor John Rodenburg, Phase Focus 1s developing

microscope and imaging devices that do without the need for tradihional

tocussing devices such as lenses or zone plates This reduces instrument

cost and banishes the distortions and aberrations that are inherent in even

the most sophisticated of today's microscopes Moreover, it provides images
showing not only how much illumination 1s absorbed by the specimen, but also

how much the specimen changes the "phase” of the dlumination

Potentially applicable to a wide variety of imaging applications and, most paricularly,
to microscopy, the application to electron microscopy 1s expected to create a
revolution in visualisation at the nano-scale Indeed, if the same gamn in resolution
already achieved for x-rays 1s achieved at electron wavelengths, 1t will be possible
to resolve every atom in an extended cobject with unprecedented resolution

Phase Focus's truly disruptive technology solves a fundamental challenge

In tmaging science and promises users, In industnes as diverse as bioscience
and semiconductor manufacturing, the possibility of observing and analysing
their matenals, processes and products in new ways and with unprecedented
clanty and ease
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vision Is 1o become a leading developer of
culting edge nucleoside based pharmaceuticals
targeted al areas of unmet medical need nitially
for the treatment of cancer

Subsequent to the year end Biofusion nvested
£200,000, increasing our shareholding 1o 50%

SALE OF CARDIFF PROTIDES AND
CARDIFF BIOLOGICALS TO MORVUS

On 10 October 2007 Morvus, a privately owned
pharmaceutical company specialising in the
discovery and development of novel oncology
therapies acquired Biofusion s shargholdings
n Cardiff Protdes and Carditf Biclogicals

Morvus facilites at ther new [aboratones In Wales,
combined with ther expertise In pharmaceutical
development, convinced the board of Biofusion
that the new combined company could be a
world leader In the provision of specialist oncology
drugs and provided the best opporturuty for
bringing Cardiff Protiddes and Cardiff Biologicals
exciting lead compounds to market

Morvus has raised over £3 4m in equity finance
to date and its most recent funding, largely
concluded in July 2007 valued Morvus at
approximalely £12m based on a pnice of 30p per
share As aresult of the sale Biofusion now owns
13,698 630 shares in Morvus gving it a 20%
shareholding in the enlarged company

However the valuation of the transaction is
based on Morvus last funding round and given
thal these shares were pavately held the Direclors
of Biolusion will take a conservative view to
recognising this value In Biofusicn s accounts
Qur intention will be to re-evaluate this value at
Morvus' next third party funding round

FINANCIAL REVIEW

RESULTS

The group s repored loss for the year increased
by 53%to £29m (2006 £19m), but was broadly in
line with budget The losses reflect the incremental
costs of the Cardiff operations for the last six
months of the financial year and an increase mn
the number of portfolio companies classified as
subsidiaries for which overheads and losses are
consolidated into the group s results

Turnover has increased by 26% to £351 000
(2006 £279 000) and represents the amounts
charged t0 associated comparues for management
services provided and the tumover of consalidated
portfolio companees The gross profit margin of
81% 1s consistent with 2006

* 10 ysar exclusive (P agreement
* Top 10 UK research ntensnve university
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Adminisirative expenses for the year belore
exceptional tems were £3 Om (2006 £1 4m)
This iIncrease was due (o the followang

¢ Incremental costs assooated with operations
established alengside Cardiff University
within the Fusion Cardiff subsidiary £170 000,

¢ Increased expenditure mncurred
In newly acquired/created portfolio
subsidianes £208 000

o ancreased expenditure in existing porifoho
subsidianes £584 000 (2006 £285 000)
as they continue through ther research
and development phases and

impairment of fixed asset
Invesiments £652 000

As aresull of the Cardiff Unversity pipeline
agreement, an ntangible asset of £15 9m was
recognised 0 accordance with FRS 10 *Goodwall
and intangible assets” The asset 1s beng amortised
on a straight line basis through the profit and
loss account over the length of the agreement
The charge of £0 9m has been represented
within exceptional items by virtue of its size In
companson 1o normal adrnistrative expenses

The Company s adopton of FRS 20 “Share-based
payments” has resulted in a prior year restatement
and exceptional charge of £1 3m This pincipally
relates to the warrants granted to NP Ventures
on 23 March 2006 This charge has no impact

on net assets and will not be recurnng Also
included in the prier year was a £0 2m net credi
following the impaiment of goodwill relating to the
acquisiton of Bicacta Limited and the release of
related loan notes and accrued interest

Interest income increased 53% to £535 000
(2006 £349 000} as a result of the increase
the group s cash holdings and inierest selating
to loans made to the group’s portiolio companies
Interest payable of £195,000 (2006 £102,000)
relates to interest accrued on the loan notes
used to purchase the group's shareholding

in portfolio companies acquired as part of the
Sheffield and Cardiff agreements These amounts
are only payable in the event of an exit and are
not constdered to be a current kability

= 10 year exclusve [P agreement
+ Top 10 UK research intensive uniersity

Durng the year investments on the balance
sheet increased to £4 5m (2006 £3 4m)

The increase in the year was made up of both
equily Investiments and convertible koan investiments
plus accrued interest, in a number of our portfolio
companies The pnnoipal increase was the €1 4m
acquisition of the interests in seven companigs
assoctated with the Cardiff agreement

Amounts faling due greater than one year rose
to £3 3m (2006 £2 Om) The increase 1s the net
impact of loan notes of £1 4m 1ssued as part of
the Cardif agreement from the acquisiion of the
seven companes plus accrued interest ansing in
the year and a £0 4m repayment of aloan note to
the University of Sheffield following the disposal
of the holding in Plasso Technology Limited

Net cash outflow befare hinancing was coensistent
with the prior year at £2 3m Fund rauising net of
share issue costs raised £7 Om leaving a closing
cash balance of £10 6m (2006 £5 9m) whichis
sufficient to supgort the current portfolio of
companies, planned creation of new portfolic
companies and central overheads beyond the
next twelve months

FUNDRAISING

The key fundhaising event of the year was
a placing of 5 3m shares at a share price
of £1 45 which raised £7 8m The costs of
this fund raising were £0 8m all of which
were taken to the share premium account
leaving net funds raised of £7 Om

As part of the cansiderauon for the Cardiff
agreement 11 0m shares were 1ssued al a price
of £1 45 giving a total value of £15 9m Following
the completion of this agreement Cardiff University
owns 30% of the 1ssued share capital of the
company The University of Sheflield now owns
26% management own 11% and institutional
investors the remaning 34%

POST YEAR END
Trading has continued In ine with expectations
since the year end

DAVID BAYNES
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
15 October 2007




1 DOUG LIVERSIDGE CBE

CHAIRMAN

Apponted o the Board of Biofusion plc on

i December 2004 hawing been a deector of Biotusion
Trad ngy since 28 Novernber 2003 He was empioyed for
21 years al Briush Steel before mowng 1o G W Tharm.on
Limteri as Managing Qurector and subseguently
Chief Executive He guided the ccmpany through s
flataticen on the tufl st of the Lordon Stock Exchange
wy March 1987 in 1831 Mr Liversidge was awaided
South Yorkshre Businessman ol the Year

Mr Liversidge acts as a Servor Industnal Adwisor o the
University of Shethield anct was awartled the CBE n the
2000 New Year s Honours List for sefvices 10 industry

2 DAVID BAYNES

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Appointed to the Board of Swluston plc an

2 November 2004 having been a director of
Biotusion Trading since 2 January 2003 David has
prenously worked at Celsis Internauonal ple (Celsis)
trom 1.5 Incorparation 1o s floiadon on the full st of
the London Stock Exchange in Jub 1893 Toad ple
{now TG21 plcy whrch he co-founded and was
respensible tor taking the company from start-up

to a full liating on the London Stack Exchange
Whereonaarth Limited and Codemasters Limitad

3 DR PETER GRANT

OPERATIONS DIRECTOR

Appoinied 1o the Board of Biofusion plc on

1 Decernber 2004, having been a diractor of Biofusion
Trading stnce 2 January 2003 Peter has a PhD

in BioChemustry trom Carditf University and has
previcusly workad at Genzyme U¥ Limited, Celltech
Limited Enzymatix Limited and Celsis ple which

he ¢o-faunded and took 16 a full lis'ng an the

Lendon Stock Exchange
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4 STUART GALL

COMMERCIAL DIRECTOR

Apponted to the Board of Biotusion pke on 27 Apnl 2005
Mr Gall has e4penence in bath small company stan-ups
and publc compan es and specialses N markebng
commumicalions and new business development

Ha has praviously worked at B-ish Airways plc,

The Promonuons Pannershie Limi2e Amal Limid

and Toaa plc {now TG21 pic)

5 DR EDWIN MOSES

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointed 1o the Board of Biofusion plc on

i Decemnber 2004 Dr Moses has extensive expenance
as a norreecutve drector T companies including
Evotec QA AG, Biotmage A/S Inpharmatca Lid lonx
Lrreted Amedis Umited  Avantium Technologes BY
Paradigm Therapeutcs and Clinphone Limited

& PROF TONY ATKINSON

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appoinied jo the Board of Biotusien ple on

1 December 2004 Piot Athinson has gxlansive

expenence as borh a director and nan es2cutve duector

for cornparies including Genenc Biologreals Kymed
Enact Pharma and CGhimeieran

7 DAVID CATTON

NOMN-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Cation was appomniedt to the Beard of Biolusen ple
on | Becember 2004 having been a duector of
Biotusion Trading since 14 August 2003 Dawvid 13
Managing Director of SUEL the Unnersity of Sheffield s
tech transfer operaton Prior 10 this David worked for
Ford Motor Company Bniish Leyland Rank %eros
Limited and Cambndge Consullants Limited

8 MIKE DAVIES

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appainted 10 the Board of Biotusion on 29 January 2007
Mike 15 Cardift Universiy 5 Duector of Physical

and Finanmial Resources Mive has gained exf2nsme
expenence ol Cardd. s technology transter acivibies
th.ough tus role as Cnawman ol UC3 and as a Duecior/
Company Secretary of the General Parntrer Boare ¢ the
Cardiff Partnerships Fung .

g SIMON OAKLAND

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointed to the Board o1 Biofusion on 20 Apnl 2005

Simen s a Pancipat of Nivko Principal Investments
Lunited (NPILY the Eurcpean pnngipal inance army

of Nikko Coraial Corporation and a Oirecior of NPI

Ventures Simon preaoush worked for e Corporale

Finance Depaitment of Cazerove & Co and prior

10 1hat was a management consultant at Accenture




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The company 1s commitied to hugh standards of corporate governance The revised Combined Code on Corporate Governance (Combined Code) was
published in 2003 While the group is not required to report on compliance with the Comiined Code since its shares are traded on AIM we make every
effort to comply The statement below descrnibes how principles of corporate governance are apphed 1o the group

THE WORKINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

THE BOARD

The board currently comprises six Non-executiva Directors and three executive Directors and 1s responsible for the management of the group  As disclosed
on page 16 Or Edwin Moses, Prof Tony Atkinson and Bawid Calton have some share options in the company however the board considers them 1o be
independent because the number of shara options are not considered to be matenal Simon Oakdand, as a representatrve of NPl Ventures 15 not considered
to be independent The other Non-executive Directors are considered by the board 1o be independent The board meets at least six tmes a year setiing
and monitoring group strategy reviewing trading performance, reviewing and agreeing on investments in spin-out companies and formulating policy on
key issues Day to day operational decisions are delegated to the execulive Directors Key issues reserved for the boatd include tha consideration of
potenbial Investments share ssues and fundraising the seting of group strategy City public relations and the review and evaluation of significant nsks
facing the business Bnefing papers are distnbuted by the Company Secretary to all Directors in advance of board meettngs All Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary who 1s responsible for ensunng that board procedures are followed and that applicable rules and
regulations are complied with The appomntment and removal of the Company Secretary 1s a matter for the board as a whole In addition, procedures
are n place to enable Directors to obtan independent professional advice in the furtherance of ther duties f necessary al the company's expense

Siographies of the Directors including detalls of ther expenence and roles within the group are set out on pages 10 and 11

ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS
The tull board met six tmas in the financial year ending 31 July 2007 and with the exception of Doug Liversidge Dr Edwin Moses, Mike Davies
and Stuart Gall, who missed one meeting each all of the Directors in office at that hme were in attendance at these meetings

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the Non-executive Charman Doug Liversidge and two of the Non-executive Directors Dr Edwin Mases and

Prof Tony Atkinson The Audit Committee s remit 1s set out in its terms of reference and 1s scheduled to meet with the auditars al least twice a year
The Committee assists the board in ensunng the group's published financial statements give a true and fair view and that, where the audiors provide
non-audi services therr objectivity and independence 1s sateguarded

THE REMUNERATICN COMMITTEE
The Rernuneration Commuittee comprses the Non-executive Director, Doug Liversidge and two of the Non-executive Birectors Br Edwin Moses
and Prof Tony Atkinson The Commitlee 1s responsible far making recommendations to the board on the remuneration of all the Drectors

THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Normination Committee compnses the Non-executive Directors and is chaired by the Chairman Doug Liversidge It meets as necessary and s
rasponsible for making recommendations te the board on the appointments of executive and Non-executive Directars When required 1t)1s the usual
practice for the Normination Committee to employ specialist external seaich and selection consultants to assist in the appointment process for new
executive and Non-executive Directors

TEAMS OF REFERENCE
The terms of reference for the Audit Remuneration and Nomination Commitiees are avaitable on request from the Company Secretary
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PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Performance of each of the executive Directors 1s evaluated on an ongoing basss by the Charman and the Non-executive Directors with a tormal review
held at least annually The Non-executive Directors ase responsible for the performance evaluation of the Charman, takmg into account the views of the
other executive Directors The Non-executive Directors will meet wath the Charman on an ad hoe basis but at feast once a year to appraise the Chanman's

performance The performance of the Non-executive Directers and the sub-committees on which they serve are reviewed by the executive board on an

ongong basis

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Key members of the execulive board regularly visit nstitutional investors and the full board will make itself avadable to questions at all shareholder
meetings it helds The Chairman and Chief Executive plan to report back to the board views of investors oblained at analyst and brokers bnefings

The board will use the Annual General Meeting to communicate with private and institutional investors and welcomes their participation The Chairman
aims to ensure that the Chairman of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees 1s avallable at Annual General Meetings to answer queslions

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Brrectors acknawledge that they are responsible for the group s system of intemal control and for reviewing its effectiveness Internal control systems
are designed 10 meet the particular needs of the group and the nisks to which it 1s exposed In accordance with the guidance of the Turnbull Committes
oninternal control the procedures are regularly reviewed in an ongoing process 10 identify, evaluate and manage the significant nsks {aced by the group
The procedures are designed to manage rather than eliminate rnsk of falure to achieve business ohjectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

The key procedures which the Directors have estabhshed with a view to prowiding effective internal control are as follows

® MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
The boaid has overall responsibility for the group and there 1s a farmal schedule of matters specifically reserved for decision by the board
Each executive Director has been given responsibility for specific aspects of the group's affars The executive Directors meet weekly to discuss
day to day operational matters

® CONTROL ENVIRONMENT
The group s control emarenment 1s the responsibility of the group s Directors and the intarnal controls were implemented in February 2005
The effectiveness of the group's internal controls are revewed annually to ensure they remain approprnate

® MAIN CONTROL PROCEDURES
The Drrectors have established control procedures in response to key nsks Standardised financial control procedures operate throughout the group
to ensure the integnty of the group s financial statements The board has established procedures for authonsation of capital and revenue expenditure

® MONITORING SYSTEM USED BY THE BOARD
The board reviews the group s periormance against budgets on a monthly basis The group's cash flow 1s monitored bi-monthly by the boarg

® INTERNAL AUDIT
The group does not have an independent internal audit function, as the board does not consider the current scale of operations warrants such
a function However as the group continues to grow, the board will keep this under review with a view 1o crealing an internal audit function when
it 1s warranted

GOING CONCERN
After making enquiries the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate reseurces to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeabls future For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

UG LIVERSIDGE CB
CHAIRMAN
15 October 2007
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REPORT ON THE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

This remuneration report sets out the company’s policy on the remuneration of executive and Non-executive Directors logether with detail of Direclors'
remuneration packages and senice contracts

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

For the financial year ended 31 July 2007 remuneration policy for executive and Non-executive Directors and the determination of indmwdual executive
Directors remuneration packages have been delegated to the board's Remuneration Commitiee comprising three Non-executive Direclors one of
which 1s the Non-executive Charman

In setting the remuneration pohcy the Remuneration Committee constders a number of factors including

{a) the basic salanies and benefits available to executive Directors of comparable companies,

{b} the need to attract and retain Directors of an appropnate calbre,

{c) the need to ensure executive Direclors commitment 1o the continued success of the company by means of iIncenbve schemes, and

{d) the need for the remuneration awarded to reflect performance

REMUNERATION OF THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the Non-executive Diractors except for Simon Qakland, who represents NPI Ventures and Mike Davies, who represents Cardiff University received
a fee for thew services The lee s agreed by the board following recommendation by the Chairman with a view to rates paid in comparable organisations
and appomiments The Non-executive Directors did not recerve any pension or other benefits from the company nor dict they pasticipate in any bonus

or incentive schemes other than share options  The Non-executive Directors each have a three year service contract with the company wath tivee
months’ notice either side After this time their appointment 1s reviewed annually

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The company s remuneration pohicy for executive Directors 1s to

(a) have regard to the Directors’ expenence and the nature and complexity of therr work in order to pay a competitive salary that attracts and retaing
management of the highest quality

(b) ink iIndmidual remuneration packages to the group's long-term performance through the award of discretionary bonus schemes and

(c} provide employment-related benefits including hie assurance insurance relating to Directors' duties and medical Insurance

SALARIES AND BENEFITS

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to consider and set the annual salanes for executive Directors, having regard o personal

pertormance and information regarding the remuneration practices of companies of similar size and of ndustry compeltitors Executive Directors
salanes were last reviewed n January 2007
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts of the executive Directors provide for six months' notice of termination Other than the notice periods afforcted to the exacutive
and Non-executive Directors, there are no specral provisions for compensation in the event of loss of office The Remuneration Committee considers
the arcumstances of ndwidual cases of early terrmination and determines compensation payments accordingly

Detads of individual Directors service contracts are as follows

Unexpured

term at

Effectve 31 Juty
contract date 2007 Nouce penod
D Liversidge (Chairman) 1 December 2004 4 months 3 months
D Baynes 26 January 2005 nfa & months
P Grant 26 January 2005 n/a 6 months
S Gall 1 April 2005 n/a 6 months
E Mcses 1 December 2004 4 menths 3 menths
T Atkinson 1 December 2004 4 menths 3 menths
O Catton 1 December 2004 4 menths 3 menths
S Oakland 19 April 2006 21 months 3 months

The Directors are required to retire by rotation once every three years

All the Directors with the exception of Simon Oakland and Mike Davies are required to relire by rotation and being ehigible will seek re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Mike Davies having been appoinied by the Directors since the last general meeting 15 subject to re-election by shareholders and heing eligible
will seek re-election

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORSHIPS

With the permission of the Charman the executive Directors may aceept appontments as Non-exacutive Directors Where an executive Director
accepts an appomntment te the board of a company (n which the group 1s a shareholder the group retains the Directors’ fees Fees eamed for
directorships of companies in which the group does not have a shareholding would be retained by the Directors

DIRECTORS' DETAILED EMOLUMENTS
Detalls of indwidual Directors’ emaluments for the year are as follows

Salary Pension Total Total
and fees Bonuses contnbutions Bengfils 2007 2006
£ £ £ € £ £
EXECUTIVE

D Baynes 147 0G0 10 000 14,700 2234 173,934 137 652
P Grant 126 0G0 10 000 12600 1,860 150,460 123,902
S Gall 126,000 10 000 12 600 1860 150,460 123902

NON-EXECUTIVE
D Lversidge (Charman) 33,500 — — —_ 33,500 24,000
E Moses 24,250 — -— — 24,250 24 000
T Atkinsen 24 25G -— —_ — 24,250 24 000
D Catton 12125 —_ — — 12,125 12,000
S Oakland — — — —_ — —
M Davies' — —_ — — — —
493 125 30 000 39.900 5,954 568,979 469 456

' Jained board on 29 January 2007 as part of the Caraift agreement and s an unpaid Non-executve Direcior

The pension contnbutions are paid inte private pension plans nominated by the related Directars or can be included with the basic salary At the year
end an amount of £36,400 was accrued but unpaid

No Director waved emoluments in the year (2006 nil)
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REPORT ON THE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION connnuep

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTIONS
Detalls of options held by Directors over the company s Ordinary shares of 1p are set out below

As at As at Earliest
31 July 33 July Exercise exercise Expury
The scheme 2006 2007 plice date date
E Moses 33333 33,333 150p 280108 280115
T Atkinson 33,333 33,333 150p 280108 280115
D Caiton 33333 33,333 150p 2801G8 280115

The market price of the company s shares at the end of the financial year was 149 Op {2006 160 Op) and the range of market prices dunng the year

was 160 Op to 146 Cp (2006 175 5p to 110 Op)

Each option will vest monthly as to one thrty-sixth of the Ordinary shares under optien on the expiry of each month following the date of the grant until
the third anniversary of the date of the grant when the option shall become fully vested Any vested portion of the options will normally be exercisable
between the expiry of the third monith after the date of the grant and the tenth anniversary of 1he date of the grant No performance conditions are requued
1o be met Optrons will become immediately exercisable in full on the death of the option-holder for a penod of twelve months from the date of death

If an option-holder ceases to be a Non-execulive Director of the company for any reason other than death his ophion (to the extent unexercised and
unvested) will lapse On a change of conirol or a voluntary winding-up of the company oplions may be exercised in full for a fixed penod Options will

lapse on the expiry of ten years from therr date of grant

Until options are exercised the option-holders have no voting or other rights in respect of the Ordinary shares under ther options Ordinary shares
1ssued pursuant 1o the Share Option Agreements shall rank pan passu in all respects with the Crdinary shates already in 1ssue except that they will
nol rank for any dividend or other distrbution announced prior to the date of the exercise Ophions are not transferabile nor are they pensionable

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

The Directors at 31 July 2007 and therr interests in the share capital of the company other than i respect of options to acquire Orclinary shares,

were as follows

31 July
ihe company - ecdnary 1p shares 2007
D Baynes 1,333,332
P Grant 1,333 332
S Gall 1,333,332
D Lversidge (Chairman) —
E Moses _
T Atkinson —
D Catton —
S Oakland _
M Davias —

On 27 January 2005 David Baynes. Peter Grant and Stuart Gall granted an option {o Doug Liversidge entithing him to acquire 97 756 Ordinary shares
from each of them at an aggregate exercise price of £44 000 The options can be exereised at any tme pror to 27 January 2015 Doug Liversidge has
undertaken to Biclusion to indemnify it from any PAYE and employers national msurance contnbutions payable by the group as a result of the exercise

of any or all of these options

Apart from the interests disclosed above no Directors held interests at any time in the year, i the share capital or loan stock of the company or other

group companies
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TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

The following line graph shows, for the financial year ended 31 July 2007 the total cumulative shasreholder return on a holding of the company s
Ordinary shares compared with a hypothetical holding of shares made up of companies in the FTSE AlM All Share index which the Directors believe
reflects the most appropriate benchmark for the company s performance

The company has never paid a dwvidend and so the tolal shareholder return has been calculated as the weeldy movemnent in the share pnce by reference

to a base point of 31 July 2007
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Signed on behalf of the board

L]

LArEALm

DOUG LIVERSIDGE CBE
CHAIRMAN
15 October 2007
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present therr report and the group financial statements for the year ended 31July 2007

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
Group loss for the year after taxation and minonty interests amounted to £2 890,000 (2006 loss £1 947,000} The Directors do not recommend
the payment of a dwvidend {2006 Enil}

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The group s pnncipal activity 1s the commerciabisation of intellectual property (IP) that 1s developed at universities and similar establishments

ENHANCED BUSINESS REVIEW
The Companies Act 1885 (Operating and Financial Review) Regulations 2005 require that the Directors present an enhanced Directors' report
These enhancemenis are provide within the Chairman s statement and Chief Executive s review

DIRECTORS
The names of the Directors who held office dunng the financial year are as follows

EXECUTIVE

D Baynes appoinied 2 November 2004
P Grant appointed 1 Decemnber 2004
S Gall appointed 27 April 2005
NON-EXECUTIVE

D Liversidge {Chairman) appointed 1 December 2004
E Moses appointed 1 December 2004
T Atkinson appomted 1 December 2004
D Catton appointed 1 December 2004
S Qakland appointed 20 April 2006
M Davies apponted 28 January 2007

Details of the interests of Directors in the share capital of the company, together with details of share oplions granted to them are set oul in the Report
on the Directors remuneration

ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS {IFRS)

The London Stock Exchange confirmed changes to the AlM rules which will require AIM companies 1o use IFRS for financial years commencing on

or after 1 January 2007 As a result, this 1s the last set of inancial statements the group will present under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{UK GAAP)

From 1 August 2007 the group wilk present its financial staternents for the first tme under IFRS The group s transition date 1o IFRS would therefore be
1 August 2006 with the first financial statements complying with IFRS being the year ended 31 July 2008 (with fufl comparalive figures for the year ended
31 July 2007)

The adoption of IFRS 1s anucipated 10 have a matenal impact an the group s financial pesition and reported results, with key changes in accounting
policy expected in dealing with fixed asset investments

All fixed asset nvesiments will be defined as tinancial assets under International Accounting Standard {IAS) 32 and will be classified as financial assets
held at far value under IAS 38 “Financial instruments recogrution and measurement”

The current accounting policy adopted under UK GAAP accounts for investments at hustonc cost less any prowvision for mpairment in value The carrying
value of all investments will ba at far value under IFRS with changes in farr value between accounting penods being charged or credited to the profit
and loss account

The change in the basis of the valuation of fixed asset investments s likely to result In significant changes to carrying values

It 1s anticipated that the introduction of IFRS will not have a matenal impact on other accounting policies
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The group s pringepal tinancial instruments compnse cash and loan notes The main purpose of these financial instruments 1s 1o raise finance for the
group's operations The group has vanous other financial instruments such as trade debtors and trade creditors that anse directly from its operations

MAJOR INTEREST IN SHARES
As al 15 October 2007 according 1o the company s register the {cllowing shareholders each held 3% or more of the company's Issued share capital

Qrdinary
Name 1p shares % Holding
Cardiff University 10 997 541 3000
The University of Sheffield 09,333 324 25 46
HSBC Global Custody Neminee (UK) 2,758 620 752
Barclayshare Nominees Limited 2672614 729
Vidacos Nominees Limited 2 300,748 528
P Grant 1333332 364
[ Baynes 1333332 364
S Gall 1333,332 364

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY
The group s policy Is to

{a) establish the payment terms with suppliers when agreeing the terms of supply

(h) ensure thatl sugplers are aware of the terms of payment, and

{¢) achere to the agreed teims

The groupy's average crediior payment penod at 31 July 2007 was 41 days (2006 37 days} The company has no trade credilors

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Duning the year the group made no chantable donations

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The Directors who held office al the date of approval of this Directors report confirm that, so far as they are each aware there 1s no relevant audt
infermation of which the company's auditors are unaware, and each Directot has taken all the steps that they ought 1o have taken as Director to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and 1o establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information

AUDITORS
In accordance with Section 384 of the Companies Act 1985 a resolution for the reappaintment of KPMG Audit Plcis to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting

By order of the board

DAVID BAYNES
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
15 October 2007
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STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Directors report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable taw and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law, the Dwectors have elected to prepare
the financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}

The group and parent company financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the
parent company and of the profit or loss for that perod

In prepanng those financial statements the Cirectors are required to
@ select sutable accounting policies and apply themn consistently
® make udgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

@ state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explaned in the
hinanctal statements and

@ prepare the financial statements on the gaing concern basis unless it 1s Inapproprate to presume that the group and the parent company will
continue In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclese with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
parent company and enable them to ensure that the financial statemenis comply with the Companies Act 1985 They have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to saleguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregutanbes

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integuty of the corporate and financia! information included on the company s website
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissermination of inancial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS, KPMG AUDIT PLC, TO THE MEMBERS OF BIOFUSION PLC

We have audited the group and parent company hnancial statements (the “financial statements”) of Biofusion plc for the year ended 31 July 2007 which
compnse the consolidated profit and loss account the consolidated and company balance sheets the consohdated cash flow statement, the consokidated
statement of recognised gans and losses and the related notes These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

Tris report 1s made solely to the company s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit wotk has been
undertaken so that we might state to the company s members those matters we are required to state ie them in an auditors report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility ta anyone other than the company and the company's members as a
body tor our audit werk for this report, or tor the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
The Directors responsibiliies for prepanng the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and UK Accounting Standards
(UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors responsibilibes on page 20

Our respensibilty s to audit the financtal statements In accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing
{UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and farr view and are properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 We also report 1o you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ report 1s consistent with the financial
statements We also report to you if, in our apinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records if we have not receved all the information
and explanations we require for our audit or if information specified by law regarding Directors' remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed

We read the other informatan contaned in the annual report and consider whether i 1s consistent with the audited financial statements We consider
the mplications for our report if we bacome aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the financial statemenis Our responsibiliies
do not extend to any other information

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit
ncludes examination, on a test basis, of ewidence relevant 1o the amounts and disclosutes In the financial statements It also includes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the group’s and company s crcumstances consistently appled and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we consictered necessary in order to provide us with
suficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial staternents are free from matenal misstatement whether caused by fraud or other
trregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of infermation in the financial statements

OPINION
In our opinion

@ the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with UK Generafly Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the group s
and the parent company s affairs as at 31 July 2007 and of the group s loss for the year then ended

® ihe financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

@ the information given m the Directors report 15 consistent with the financial statements

kP Ad- Pl

KPMG AUDIT PLC
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
REGISTERED AUDITOR
LEEDS

15 October 2007
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2007

Continuing

operations  Acquisitions Total Rastated

2007 2007 2007 2006

Note £000 £000 £000 £000

TURNCVER 2 301 50 351 273

Cost of sales {17) {15) (32) {23)

GROSS PROFIT 284 35 319 256
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

- normal 3 {2,806) {208) {3,014} (1 402)

- exceptional 4 {903) —_ {903} {+ 158)

(3,709) (208} (3.917} (2 560)

OPERATING LOSS (3,425) (173} (3,598} (2 304)

Surplus on disposal of fixed asset investments 58 —

Interest recevable and similar ncome 7 535 349

Interest payable and similar charges 8 (195) {102}

LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION 3 {3,200) (2 057}

Tax on loss on erdinary actvities 8 — —

Minonty interests 20 310 110

LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR {2,890) {1947

BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 10 (9 68p) (10 08p}

There 1s no difference between the loss on ordinary activiies before taxation and the loss for the years stated above and therr historical cost equivalents

The notes on pages 26 to 37 form part of these linancial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2007

Restated

2007 2006

Note £000 F£000

Loss for the financial year (2,890) (1947)
TOTAL RECOGNISED LOSSES FOR THE YEAR {2.880) (1,947)
Phor year adjustment 4 {1,339) —
TOTAL LOSSES RECOGNISED SINCE LAST ANNUAL REPORT (4,229) (1,947)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AT 31 JULY 2007

2007 2007 2006 2006
Note 2000 £000 £000 £000
FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets 11 15,204 68
Tangible assets 12 41 25
lnvestments 13 4510 3370
18,755 3463
CURRENT ASSETS
Stock 14 6 7
Debtors 15 789 569
Cash ai bank and in hand 10,600 5,883
11,385 6 459
CREDITORS amounts lalling due withun one year 16 (403) (187
NET CURRENT ASSETS 10 992 6262
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 30,747 9,725
CREDITORS amounts faling due after more than ona year 17 {3,293) {2,038)
NET ASSETS 27,454 7.687
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 18 367 203
Capital reserve 19 2 2
Share premuwm 19 31,671 8906
Capital redemption reserve 19 1 1
Profit and foss account 19 (4 244) (1.370)
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 27,797 7742
Mmnornty interest 20 (343) (55)
27,454 7687

These financial statements were approved by the board of Directors on 15 Getober 2007 and were signed on its behalf by the Chairman

G LIVERSID:
CHAIRMAN

—
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AT 31 JULY 2007

2007 2007 2006 2006
Note £000 £000 2000 £000
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 12 23 —
Invesirments 13 2 1
25 1
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 15 31,885 8,917
31,885 B 917
CREDITORS amounits falling due within one year 16 (63) —
NET CURRENT ASSETS 31,822 8,917
NET ASSETS 31,847 8,918
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 18 367 203
Share premium 19 31,671 8 906
Capital redemption reserve 19 1 1
Profil and loss account 19 {182} {192}
SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS 31,847 8918

These financial statemenis were approved by the board of Directors on 15 Oclober 2007 and were signed an its behalf by the Chairman

O—Q..A-‘-'

DOUG LIVI I0GE CBE
CHAIRMAN
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2007

2007 2006
Note £000 £000
NET CASH CUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 23 (2,279) (943)
RETURNS ON INVESTMENT AND SERVICING OF FINANCE
Interest received 535 349
TAXATION — —
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Payments for tangible fixed assets (28) (13)
Payments for fixed assets nvestments (833) {1561)
Paymenits for Intangible fixed assets (118) -
Proceeds from sales of fixed assels nvestmenis 377 —_
NET CASH QUTFLOW FROM CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCIAL INVESTMENT (602} {1574)
NET CASH OUTFLOW BEFORE FINANCING AND ACQUISITIONS {2,346} {2 168)
ACQUISITIONS
Payments to acquire investments in subsidiary undertakings (8} (128)
Net cash acquired with subsidianes 29 26
23 (102)
NET CASH OUTFLOW BEFORE FINANCING {2 323) 2,270)
FINANCING
Issue of ordinary share capial 7,757 2000
Share 1ssue costs (717} (72)
7,040 1928
Increase/{decrease} in cash in the pencd 23 4,717 (342)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 SULY 2007

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation te the financial
statements except as noted below

In these financial statements the following new standard has been adopted for the first ime
® FRS 20 "Share-based paymenis”
The accounting palicies under this new standard are set ou! below together with an indication of the effect of its adoption

The company operates an equiy-settled share-based compensation plan for its Directors and has also issued warrants tor the purchase of shares in
respect of the side fund established by NP Ventures The fair value of the share-based compensation has been recognised as an expense The total
amount o be expensed over the vesting period 1s determined by referance to the fair value of the share options or warrants granted Fair value has
been determined by reference to the Black-Scholes option pricing medel

The adoption of FRS 20 has resulted in a prior year adjustmant which reduced the profit for tha prior year by £1,339,000 and increased profit and loss
reserves by the corresponding amount There was no impact on the group s net assets

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements have been prepared in accardance with apphcable accounting standards, under the hustoncal cost accounting rules and with
the requirementis of the Companies Act 1985 except as explained below

The financiat statements are prepared on the going concern basis Cash balances at 31 July 2007 amaount to £10,600 000 (2006 £5 900 000)
The batances are considered sufficient to meet expendture for at least the next 12 months from the date of these financial statements In additon
the Company's forecast expenditure includes amounts of a discretionary basis in relation 10 potential investments

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The conseolidated financial statements include the financiat statemants of the company and its subsidiary undertakings made up to 31 July 2007

The acquisimon method of accounting has been adopted Under this method, the resulis of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of In the year
arencluded in the consolidated profit and loss acceunt from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal

Those investments that are associated undertakuings are carned at cost in accordance with the group’s normal policy and are not equty agcounted
as required by the Companies Act 1985 The Directors consider that as these invesiments are held as part of the group's portfolio with a view to the
ultimate reahisation of capital gans equity accounting would not give a true and fair view of the group's interest in these mvestments The accounting
treatment adopted i1s in line with the FRS 9 ‘Associates and joint ventures ', with respect to investiment funds The Directors have decided not to guantly
the effect of the different treatments due 1o the signtficant increase in the number of investments in the year

Merger accounting has been adopted to consolidale the subsidiary Biofusion Trading Linuted under the prowisions of FRS § “Acquisiions and Mergers”

TURNOVER
Turover, comprising fees for vanous advisory and fund management services 1s recognised in the profit and loss account when the related services
are performed and when considered recoverable All turnover 1s generated within the United Kingdom and is stated exclusive of value added tax

GOODWILL

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings, representing the excess tar value of the consideration given over the farr value of the
wdentifiable assets and habililies acquired, 15 capitalised and witten off on a straight line basis over its useful economuc life which 1s ten years Provision
15 mads for impairment

Intellectual property patents and hicences purchased by the company are amortised to nil by equal annual instalments over thewr useful economic lives,
generally their respective unexpired penods, which are ten years

The intellectual property pipeline with Cardifl University has been recognised in accordance with FRS 10 “Goodwill and intangible asseis™ as an intangible
assel The assetis amortised on a straight Iine basis over the ten year agreement, with prowision made {or any imparment when required

INVESTMENTS
Investments are stated at historic cost less any provision for imparrment in value and are held for long-term investmenl purposes Investments are
classified as equity investments and loans which are convertible to equity in the future

Provisions are based upon an assessment of events or changes in crcumnstances that indicate that an impairment has occurred This includes
the performance and/or prospects (including financial prospecis} of the investee company being significantly below the expectations on which
the invesiment was based a significant adverse change in the markets in which the investee company operates or a detertoration in general market
conditons and the value implied by third party external funding in the year
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
STOCKS
Stocks are slated at the lower of cost and net realisable value

FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
Deprectation 1s provided 10 write off the cost less the estimated residual value of 1angible fixed assets by equal instalments over their estimated useful
economic lves as follows

Computer equipment - 25% per annum

Office equipment - 33% per annum

PAYMENTS ON ACCOUNT

Payments on account represent transfer of funds in advance to the University of Sheflield held on the balance sheet of Biolusion Trading Ltd
The payments on accourt are held at cost less any amounts transferred o equity investments an accouni of the acquisition of interests in spin
out companies from the University of Sheffield Life Science department

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
Expenditure on research and development 1s writien off to the profit and loss account in the year in which itis incurred

PENS|ON COMMITMENTS
The group makes defined contnbutions to employees approved personal pengion plans Contributions are charged to the profit and loss account
in the penod in which payments are payable to the pension funds

DEFERRED TAXATION

Prowision 1s made in full for defered tax habilibes that anse from timing differences where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more
tax in the future have occurred by the batance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recognised to the exient that it 1s considered more likety than not that
they will be recoverable Deferred tax 1s measured al the average tax rates that are expected to apply in penods in which the tming differences are
expected to reverse based on the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets
and labilities are not discounted

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Currently, the group does not enter into denvative financial instruments  Financial assets and financial labilhes are recogrised and cease lo be recognised
on the basis of when the related titles pass to or from the group Financial assets are stated at the lower of cost to the group less prowvision for amortisation
and imparment

2 TURNOVER
Turnover and lass on ordinary activities before 1axation are denved entirely from the pnncipal activities within the United Kingdom

3 LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

2007 2006
£000 £000
Loss on ordinary activitries before taxation 1s stated after charging/{crediting)
Depreciation and other amounts wntten off tangible fixed assets 12 4
Loss on sale oi fixed assets — 1
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 9803 55
Profit on deemed disposal of subsidiary (8) (5
Impatrment of fixed asset investments 652 —_
Auditors remuneration
- audit of financiat statements — group 18 15
- audit of financial statements - subsidianes 8 4
-review of inlenm hnancial statements 9 5
- services refating to corporate finance transactions 55 —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conmiNnueD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2007

4 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

2007 2006
£000 £000
Share-based payments 16 1,339
Goodwill amortisation 887 —_
Goodwill impasrment/ioan note wawver — {181}
903 1,158

Follawing the adoption of FRS 20 ‘ Share-based payments”, a prior year adjustment of £1,339 000 was charged to the profit and loss account
and increased profit and loss reserves by the corresponding amount There was no impact cn the group's net assets The charge relates pnimanly
1o the warrants granted to NPl Ventures on 23 March 20086

The goodwill amortisation charge of £887 000 represenis the amortisation of the Cardiff intelleciual property pipeline for the penad from 8 January 2007

The goodwill impairment and loan note waiver in 2006 arose following an imparment review of Bioacta Lid

5 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

2007 2006
£000 £000
Directors' emoluments 529 434
529 434
Company contributions to money purchase pensian schemes 40 35
569 469

The aggregate of emoluments of the highest paid Director was £159 234 (2006 £125 152) and company pension contributions of £14 700 (2006 £12 500}
were accrued for payment to be made to a money purchase scheme on his behalf

Number of Directors

2007 2006

Retirament benefits are accruing to the following numbser of Directors under
Money purchase schemes 3 3

6 STAFF NUMBERS AND COSTS
The average number of persons employed by the group (including Directors) during the year, analysed by category, was as follows

MNumber of employees

2007 2006
Directors M 8
Staft 4 2
13 10

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows
2007 2006
£000 £000
Wages and salares 614 488
Social secunty costs 68 51
Oiher pension costs 40 35
722 574
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7 INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

2007 2006
£000 £000
Bank interest recevable 467 261
Interest on loans to associated undertakings 68 88
535 349
8 INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES
2007 2008
£000 £000
Interest on loans from related parties 195 102
g TAX ON LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ANALYSIS OF CHARGE IN YEAR
2007 2006
£000 £000

CURRENT TAX
UK corporation tax on loss of the penod
Adjustments in respect of pnor year

Tax on loss on ordinary activities

No deferred tax assel has been recogmsed in respect of trading losses carned forward due to the uncenainty of the availabilily of future taxable proiits

from which the trading fosses can be deducted The tetal amount unprovided at 31 July 2007 s £1,092 000 (2006 £481,000)

2007 2008
£000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances — 1
Tax losses carned forward (1,114) (482)
{1.114) (481)
FACTORS AFFECTING THE TAX CHARGE FOR THE CURRENT PERIOD
Current tax on income for the penod 1s lower (2006 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom (20%) {2006 19%)
The differences are explained below
2007 2005
£000 £000
CURRENT TAX RECONCILIATION
Loss on ordinary activities before tax {3,200) (2057)
Current lax at 20% (2006 19%) (640) {391)
EFFECTS OF
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 8 6
Capital allowances for perrod In excess of depreciation —_ —
Unutihsed tax losses 632 385
Total current tax charge (See above)} — -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continuep
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2007

10 BASIC AND FULLY DILUTED LOSS PER ORDINARY SHARE

2007 2006
No Neo

NUMBER OF SHARES
Basic weighted average number of shares in 1ssue . 29,852,493 19,318,799
Loss retained in the year (2.890) {1.847)

The basic loss per share 1s based on the weighted average number of Ordinary shares in1ssue dunng the year This included 20 316 429 shares
1n issue throughout the year and 16,347 538 shares 1ssued on 9 Janaury 2007 which were included for seven months of the year

The calculation of diluted loss per ordinary share (s identical to that used for basic loss per share This 1s because the exercise of eptions would have
the effect of reducing the loss per ordinary share and 1s therefore not dilubive under the ierms of FRS 14 “Earnings per share”

11 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

IP nghts Goodwll Total
Group 000 000 £000
COSsT
At 1 August 2006 — 599 699
Additions - purchased intellectual property 16,064 — 16 064
Additions — negative goadwill on acquisition — (25} (25)
AT 31 JULY 2007 16,064 574 16,638
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1 August 2006 — (531) (531
Charge for the year (898) )] (903)
AT 31 JULY 2007 (898) (536) (1.4349)
NET BOOK VALUE
AT 31 JULY 2007 15,166 38 15,204
At 31 July 2006 — 68 68

The IP nghts in the year anse from the acquisiion of the Cardiff University pipeline, £15 846,000 and intellactual property acquired from
the Umversity of Sheifield in relation to certan subsidiary undertakings £118,000

Goodwill relates to thal generated on the acquisiion of the group's subsidiaries Biaacta Ltd {fully wntten down), Diurnal Ltd and Lifestyle Choices Lid
The negative goodwilt on acquisiion arose when Biofusion acquired a 55% shareholding i Magnomatics Ltd from the University of Sheffield (see note 24)

Intangible fixed assets are wnlten down over therr useiul econenuc lives subject Lo annual imparment rewews The charge for the year includes
£887,000 n relation to the Cardifl University pipeline written down over ten years from the commencement of the agreement in January 2007
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12 TANGIBLE ASSETS

Group Company
Computer Computer
equipment equpment
£000 £000
COST
Al 1 August 2006 34 —
Additions 28 7
Aquired wath subsidiary undertaking — 21
AT 31 JULY 2007 62 28
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At beginning of year (9} —
Chaige for year (12) )]
AT END OF YEAR 21) (S)
NET BOOK VALUE
AT 31 JULY 2007 41 23
At 31 July 2006 25 —_
13 INVESTMENTS
Equaty Loans Total
Group £000 £000 i ves
COsT
At 1 August 2006 2,242 1,128 3370
Additions 1,761 388 2148
Transfers 634 {634} —
Disposals (357) — (357
AT 31 JULY 2007 4,280 682 5,162
PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT
At 1 August 2006 — — -
Charge for year 652 — 652
AT 31 JULY 2007 652 —_— 652
NET BOOK VALUES
AT 31 JULY 2007 3,628 882 4,510
At 31 July 2006 2,242 1,128 3,370

Investments relate to shareholdings in pertfolio compantes below 50% |n accordance with the group's accounting policies, these amounts are held
at cost less any provision for impairment

The value of participating interests compnses of investments in Associates £4,510 000 (2006 £3 012,000) and other investments £nil {2006 £357 000}

Shares

n gioup

undertakings

Company £000
COST AND NET BOOK VALUE

At 1 August 2006 1

Additians 1

AT 3t JULY 2007 2

Shares in group undertakings represent the company s Investment in Biofusion Trading td

Durnng the year Fusion Cardiff Lid was incorporaled and the company owns 100% of the issued share capital In addition the company acquired
a 10% holding in Bitecic Lirmited which 1s a collaboratron between industry universities and expert chricians in the Yorkshire regron
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conminueD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2007

13 INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

The group's interest 1n companies at the year end 1s as follows

Cauntry of Principal Class of
ncorporation actnaty Holding shares held
SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
Biofusion Trading Liruted United Kingdom Holding company 100% Crdinary
Fusion Cardiff Limited United Kingdom Holding company 100% Ordinary
Biolusion Licensing (Sheffield) Limited? United Kingdom Licensing 100% Crdinary
Mantelum Limited® United Kingdom IP development 100% Crdinary
company
Absynth Biologics Limited! United Kingdom MRSA vaccines 60% Crdinary
BioHydrogen Limited” United Kingdom  Hydrogen production 60% Crdinary
Medella Therapeutics Lirited United Kingdom Cancer therapeutics 60% Crdinary
Lifestyle Chaices Limited United Kingdom Ovanan reserve 60% Crdinary
measurement
Owrnal Limited! United Kingdom  Hormone replacement 60% Ordinary
Genophrenix Limited' United Kingdom Identification ot 60% Ordinary
Schizophrenia targets
Phase Focus Limited’ United Kingdom  Lensless microscopy 56% Orchinary
Magnomatics Limited! United Kingdom Magnetic devices 54% Ordinany
Bioacta Limited! United Kingdom Angiogenesis 52% Ordinary
compounds
PARTICIPATING INTERESTS
Advantix Limited* United Kingdom Vaccine adjuvants 49% Oidinary
Axordia Limited” United Kingdom Stemn cell therapy 45% Ordinary
Astenion Limited’ United Kengdom Cytokine therapies 34% Orcdinary
Art of Xen Limited? United Kingdom Medical use of Xenon gas 32% Ordinary
Medaphor Limited? United Kengdom Medical 2% Ordinary
training solutions
Simeyp Limited! United Kingdom Drug metabolism 25% Ordinary
Abcellute Limited? United Kingdem Cell stabilising 24% Oidinary
lechnology
Cardiff Protides Limited? United Kingdom Nucleoside drugs 23% Oicinary
Celltran Limited! United Kingdem  Chronic wound therapy 15% Ordinary
Apeno Diagnostics Limited! United Kingdom  Cervical cancer detection 14% Ordinary
Muscagen Limited? United Kingdom Drug discovery 13% Qrchinary
Bitecic Limited United Kingdom Climnical research 10% Ordinary
and support
12L Research Limited? United Kingdom Pesticide testing 10% Ordinary
Q Chip Limited? Uniled Kingdom Life scence and 10% Ordinary

therapeutic products

' Held indirectly by Biofusion Trading Ltc

" Held indirectly by Fusion Cardif Ltg

s
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14 STOCK

Group Cormpany
2007 2006 2007 20068
£000 £000 £000 £000
Fimished goods and goads for resale 8 7 — —
15 DEBTORS
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2008
£000 £000 £000 2000
Trade debtors 243 85 — _—
Amounts due {rom assoctated undertakings — 16 — —
Amounts due from group underiakings — — 31 856 8917
Other tax and social secunty 36 19 — -_—
Cther debtors 8 1 — -
Payments on account 296 388 — —
Prepayments and accrued income 208 60 29 —
789 569 31,885 8917
16 CREDITORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 20068
£000 E000 £000 £000
Trade creditors 189 87 — —_
Other crechtors — 21 — —
Other tax and sooal secunty 6 - - -
Accruals and deferred income 208 89 63 —
403 197 63 —_
17 CREDITORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000
Amaounts owed to related parties 3,293 2038 — —

The amount of £3 293,000 due at 31 July 2007 wcludes £1,754,000 (2006 £1,977 000) and £1,474 000 (2006 £nul) that relates to loan notes and
accrued interest due to the University of Shetfield and Cardiff University respectively ansing from the purchase of the group s interest in its portfolio of
spin out companies These amounts are repayable on the sarlier of the sale by Biofusion of the underlying share capual in the company, or the company
making ddend payments or ten years from the day of 1ssue These amounts are only payable 1o the extent that any gain or dwvidend 1s received by
Bioluston, and can be cancelled by Biofusion by the return of the shares io which they relate to the University of Sheffield or Cardiff University respectively
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conTiNueED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2007

18 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Number 2007 Number 2006
of shares £000 of shares £000
AUTHORISED

Equity Ordinary shares of £0 01 each 40,000,000 400 40000000 400
400 400

ALLOTTED, CALLED UP AND FULLY PAID
Equity Ordinary shares of £0 01 each 36,653,967 367 20316429 203
367 203
Ordinary
shares
€000
Balance brought forward 203
Issue of shaies 164
Balance carned forward 367

As part of the Cardiff University agreement dated 9 January 2007, Biofusion issued 10,997 541 new Ordinary shares of 1p each to Cardiff University
at £1 45 per share |n addition o this, Bictusion placed § 349 997 new Ordinary shares of 1p each with institutional investars at £1 45 per share which
raised £7 757,000 before expenses

The costs of the combinad share 1ssue amounted to £775,000 and have been charged {0 the share premium account These costs related to legal
and brokerage fees incurred on the transaction (see note 19}

19 RESERVES

Profit Share Capital

and loss premium  redemptian Capital

account account reserve reserve

Group £000 £000 £0GO £000

Balance brought forward 1370 8,906 1 2

Issued dunng the year - 23540 — —

Cost of share 1ssue —_ (775) —_ —

Share-based payments (16} — — —

Loss for the financial year 2,890 — — —

Balance carned forward 4244 31671 1 2
The capital reserve represents differences on consolidation under merge! accounting

Prolit Share Capital

and loss premium  redemption

account account reserve

2007 2007 2007

Company 2000 £000 £000

Balance brought forward {192) 8906 1

Issued dunng the year — 23 540 —

Cost of share 1ssue — (775} —

Balance carned forward (192) 31671 i

As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 the company s prafit and loss account has not been included in these financial statements
The company s result for the financial year was a £nil {2006 loss of £192 000)
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20 MINCRITY INTERESTS

2007 2005

£000 £000
Balance brought forward {55} 2
Deemed disposal (6) (13}
Introduced at acquisition 28 6
Gan en diluton — 60
Share of loss in the year {310 (110)
Balance carred forward (343) (55)

Minority interests of £343,000 represent the minonty share of Bivacta Life Siyle Choices Phase Focus Genophrenix £iurnal Magnomatics
BioHydrogen Medelta Therapeutics Absynth Biclogics and Mantelum s losses generaled since the date of acquisiion or incorporation of these
companies less any amount invested in these companies by the minonty shareholders The deemed disposal represents the reduction in Biofusion s
shareholding in Phase Focus

21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Duning the year Biofusion purchased administrative and other services from Sheffield University Enterpnses Lid (SUEL} a wholly owned subsidiary
ot the University of Sheffield, totalling £19 000 (2006 £7,000) in addition Biofusion prowded support services to SUEL duiing the year of £120 000
{2006 £180 000} At 31 July 2007 the balance due from SUEL was £217,000 {2006 £71 000)

In addition, under the terms of the Agreement dated January 2005 Biofusion Trading Lid paid the University of Sheffreld £120,000 {2006 £130 000)
as payments on account for intelleclual property Briofusion Trading Ltd purchased intellectual property from the University dunng the year with a total
value of £118 000 These payments wess taken against payments on account

Under the terms of the Agreement dated January 2007 Fusion Cardifi Ltd paid Cardiff University £118,000 as payments to support the management
of the wntellectual property pipeline At 31 July 2007 the balance due to Cardiff University was £3 000

Dunng the year, Biofusion has continued to acerue for nterest due on loans in respect of the purchase of the onginal portfolio companies rom both
the University of Sheftield and Cardiff University

During the year the company supphed managemen! serices to companies in which it held a participating interest totaling £11,000 {2006 £48 00Q)

22 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Restated

2007 2006

Group £000 2000
LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR {2,890) {1.847)
Share-based payments 16 1,340
Proceeds from share 1ssue 23,704 2000
Costs of share issue (775) {73)
NET INCREASE IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 20 055 1,320
Opening shareholders funds 7.742 6422
CLOSING SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS 27,797 7742
2007 2006

Company 2000 €000
LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR — (192)
Proceeds from share 1ssue 23704 2000
Costs of share 15508 (775} {72}
NET INCREASE IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 22,928 1736
Opening shareholders funds 6918 7,182
CLOSING SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 31,847 8918
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conmNueD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2007

23 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2007 2006

£000 £000
{h RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO QPERATING CASH FLOW
Operating loss {3,598) {2 304)
Amortisation of geodwill 903 55
Share-based payment 16 1339
Imparrment losses 652 421
Deemed profit on disposal 8} (5)
Bepreciation 12 4
Loss on sale of ed assets — 1
Profit on sale of fixed asset investments 58 —
Decrease/(increase) in stock 1 {7)
(Increase)/decrease in deblors (177} 40
Increase in crediors (138) (487)
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (2,279} {943)
(1) RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET FUNDS
Increase/{decrease) in cash in the penod 4,717 {342)
iNon cash movement on Joan notes (1,612} 444
Decrease m debt 357 —
increase in net funds 3,462 102
Opening net funds 3,845 3743
CLOSING NET FUNDS 7,307 3,845
(I NET FUNDS
Cash 10,600 5883
lL.ean notes {3,293) {2,038)
Opening net funds 7,307 3,845

24 ACQUISITIONS

Dunng the year Biotusion established a number of new companies and acquired a 54 6% shareholding vy Magnomatics Lid from the Univessity of Sheffield

The far value and book value of assets acquired on 24 January 2007 were

Book and

far value

24 January

2007

£000

CURRENT ASSETS

Debtors 43
Cash at bank and in hand 26
72
Creditors amounts fallng due within one year (i1)
NET ASSETS 61
Met consideration 8
Net assets acquired 33
NEGATIVE GOQDWILL ARISING ON ACQUISITION (25)

6
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25 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Durning the year no new share options or share warrants were 1ssued

Details of the share options held by directors are set out within the Report on Directors Remuneration
On 23 March 2006 as part of a £10m Side Fund agreement, Biofusion 1ssued the following warrants to NP Ventures
(1) 1225,000 Ordinary shares with an exercise price of £1 50,
() 1,225,000 Ordinary shares with an exercise prnce of £1 60,
{my612 500 Ordinary shares with an exercise price of £1 80, and
{v)612,500 Ordinary shares with an exercise prce of £2 20

All of the Warrants are exercisable at any time commencing on the first anniversary of the associated Warrant Deed and on o before the tenth anniversary
of the date of the Warrant Deed

The farr value of the share based options and warrants are recognised as an expense through the profit and loss account over the relevant vesting pencds
The charge in the current year was £16 000 (2006 £1 339 000)

The far values are determined by using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the assumptions used at the tarr value measurement dale are shown
in the table below

Dhrectors NP1
Share price at grant 15000p 152 25p
Dividend yield 00% 00%
Expected volatiity 18 52% 18 85%
Terrn to matunty 65years 5 5years
Risk free interest rate 4 46% 428%
Number of shares under option 99 999 3675000

The expected volatlity was benchmarked against an index of similar companies in the biotech index as no histonc data was available for the company
al the grant date

26 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
On 15 August 2007, the company invested €75 000 in Celltran as pan of a £1m syndicated loan, with a further £75 000 due once certain milestones
are achieved

On 17 September 2007 the company nvested £200 000 in Abcellute as part of a £400 000 tunding round with Finance Wales As a result of the funding
round Biofusion’s holding in Abeellute increased 10 34%

On 21 September 2007, Biofusion announced it had signed a Memorandum of Understanding with Finance Wales The agreement detaled a co-nvestment
strategy for investing «n spin-out companies formed as part of the IP pipeline agreement with Cardiff University

On 2 October 2007 Bictusion announced that Cardiff Universily had transferted ils 25% holding in Cardiff Biologicals to Biofusion for a loan nots to the value
of £250 000 Subseguently Biofusion invested £200 000 1n Cardiff Biologicals to increase its holding to 50%

0On 2 October 2007, Biofusion invested £200 000 in Cardifi Protides to increase its holding 1o 50%

On 9@ Octaber 2007, Brofusion sold its holdings in Carchff Biologicals and Cardiff Protides to Morvus Technology Limited a privately owned pharmaceutical
company In consideration for the transaction Biofuston now owns a 20% holding in Morvus
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General Meeling of Biofusion pic will be held al the offices of Ashurst Broadwalk House 5 Appold Strieet
London EC2A 2HA on Friday 30 November 2007 at 1030 am for the following purposes

1 Toreceve the accounts (including the Directors remuneration repert) for the financial year ended 31 July 2007 together with the reponts
of the Directors and auditors thereon (Resolution 1)

To re-appaint KPMG Audit Plc as auditers of the Company {Resolution 2}

To authonse the Directors to set the remuneration of the auditors  (Resoiution 3)

To re-elect Mr D Liversidge who retires by rotation as a Director of the Company {Resolution 4}
To re-elect Mr D Baynes who relires by rotation as a Director of the Company (Resolution 5)
To re-elect Or P Grant who retires by rotation as a Director of the Company (Resolution 6}

To re-elect Mr S Gall who retires by rotation as a Director of the Company (Resolution 7)

To re-elect Dr E Moses, who retires by rotalion as a Directer of the Company (Resolution 8)

0w M Nt R WM

To re-elect Prof T Atkinson, who retires by rotation as a Director of the Company (Resolution 9)
10 To re-elect Mr D Catton who retires by rotation as a Directar of the Company {Resolution 10)
11 To re-elect Mr M Davies as a Director of the company having been appointed as a Director since the last Annual General Meeting (Resoclution 11)

By order of the board

RICHARD BIRTLES
COMPANY SECRETARY
15 October 2007

Registered Office
Innovation Centre
217 Portobello
Sheifield S1 4DP

NOTES

PROXIES

1 A member entitled to attend and vote may appoint a proxy or proxies whe need not be a member of the company to attend (and on a poll to vole)
nstead of him or her Forms of proxy need to be deposited with the company s registrar Capita Registrars at The Registry 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU nat later than 48 hours belore the btimae of the meseting Completron of a form of proxy will not preclude a member
altending and voling in person at the meeting

DOCUMENTS ON DISPLAY

2 The register of Drectors’ interests in the share capital and debentures of the company, together with copies of service agreements under whuch
Dwrectors of the company are employed and copies of the ferms and condiions of appointment of Non-executve Directors are available for inspection
at the company’s registered office dunng normal business hours from the date of this notice untl the date of the Annual General Meeting and will be
avalable for inspecton ai the place of the Annuwal General Meeting for at least 15 minutes pnior to and dunng the meeting

RIGHT TQC ATTEND AND VOTE

3 Pursuant to regulation 41 of the Uncertihicated Securities Regulations 2001 (SI 2001 No 3755), the Campany specifies that in order to have the nght
to attend and vote at the meeting (and also for the purpose of calculating how many voles a person entitled to attend and vote may cast) a person
must be entered on the register of holders of the Ordinary shares of the Company by nc later than 10 30 a m on 28 November 2007, heing
48 hours before the ime frxed for the meeting Changes to enines on the register after this ime shall be disregarded in determining the nghts
of any person to attend or vote at the meeting
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FORM OF PROXY

Please read the notes below before completing this form

Any amendments to this form should be imtidlied by the signatory

I/We {(name(s} in full)

of (address(es))

being (a) member(s) of the above-named company hereby appomt the Chairman of the meeting, or failing him

as my/our proxy io vote for mefus on my/our behalf as directed below at the 2007 Annual General Meeting of the company to be held at the cffices
of Ashurst Broadwalk House 5 Appold Street London EC2A 2HA on Fnday 30 Novemnber 2007 at 10 30 am , and at any adjournment thergof

Please indicate in the boxes hefow how you wish your votes to be cast

Vote
Far Aganst witheld

RESOLUTION 1 To receve the accounts and reports of the Direciors and auditors

for the year ended 31 July 2007

RESOLUTION 2 To re-appoint KPMG as audtors of the Company

RESOLUTION 3 To authenise the Directors Lo set the remuneration of the auditors

RESOLUTION 4 To re-elect Mr D Liversidge

RESOLUTION 5 Yo re-elect Mr D Baynes

RESOLUTION 6 To re-elect Dr P Grant

RESOLUTION 7 To re-glect Mr S Gall

RESOLUTION 8 Tore-elect Or E Moses

RESOLUTION @ To re-clect Prot T Atkinson

RESOLUTION 10 Te re-elect Mr D Catton

RESOLUTION 11 To re-elect Mr M Davies

Signature Date

NOTES TO THE FORM OF PROXY

1

You may appomnt ane or more proxies of your own choice, If you are unable to attend the meeting but would like to vote If such an appointment
1s made delete the words “the Chairmnan of the meeting” and insert the name(s) of the person or persons apponted as proxy/proxes in the space
provided A proxy need not be a member of the company |f no name 1s entered, the return of this form duly signed will authorise the Chairman
of the meeting to act as your proxy

In the case of a corporation, this form of proxy must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of a duly authonsed officer or attorney

In order that this form of proxy shall be vahd it must be deposited (together with any power of attormey or other authonty under which it 1s signed
or a notanally certrfied copy of such power or a copy certified in accordance with the Powers of Attorney Act 1971 or in some other manner approved
by the Directors}, at the company s registrars Capita Regstrars at The Registry 34 Beckenhamn Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU not later than
48 hours before the time appointed for the meeting The completion and return of a form of proxy will not, however preclude shareholders from
attending and voting 1n person at the meeting or at any adjournment thereof should they wish to do so

It two or more persons are jointly entitled to a share conferfing the nght to vote, any one of them may vole at the meeting either in person or by proxy,
but it more than ene joint holder 1s present at the meeting either in person or by praxy the one whose name stands first in the register of members
In respect of the joint holding shall alene be enlitled 1o vote in respect thereof In any event, the names of all joint holders should be stated on the
form of proxy

The "vote withheld™ cption is prowided to enable you to instruct your proxy not 1o vote on any particular resolution however, it should be noted that
a “vote withheld” in this way 1s not a vote In law and will not be counted in the calculation of the proportion of votes 'for” and *against™ a resolution
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